
Tuesday, 12 November 2019 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 21 November 2019, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 20 November 2019 - by notifying the Officer named on the report 
of the objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE - BIG MEADOW, STAVELEY  3 - 20 

 To consider a nomination to list land named as Big Meadow, Staveley, Kendal, 
as an asset of community value. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this part of the Agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision: Thursday, 21 November 2019 

Nomination to List Asset of Community Value - Big 
Meadow, Staveley 

 

Portfolio:  Councillor Dyan Jones - Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio 
Holder 

Decision Maker: Simon Rowley - Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Tom Dugdale – Research and Information Officer 

Wards:  Kendal Rural; 

Forward Plan: N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Entry of the land named Big Meadow, Staveley onto the list of unsuccessful 
nominations of Assets of Community Value. 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is proposed that the nomination for Big Meadow, Staveley, Kendal, as 
identified on the plan attached to this report, be entered onto South Lakeland 
District Council’s list of unsuccessful nominations of Assets of Community 
Value. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 A nomination to list an asset of community value was submitted by Staveley with Ings 
Parish Council on the 7th October 2019. 

3.2 The current use of the land is as a private tenant farming field. According to the 
nomination the land is used for seasonal farming. 

3.3 In the nomination the Parish Council describes the land as being a huge area within 
the central part of the village of Staveley, which has been revered by residents for 
many years. It is noted, in the nomination, that the community gain pleasure from 
walking around the field (which is also wheelchair accessible and not very steep) and 
gain pleasure from the views across it.   

3.4 The nomination refers to the land being designated as a Green Space by the Lake 
District National Park Authority, and states that there has been, in the past and 
present, strong objections from the community towards any proposed development 
taking place on the land.  The nomination states that this is evidence that the 
community feel strongly that the field should be retained as a community asset. 

3.5 The nomination states that the asset could be kept as a private tenant field used by a 
local farmer for the foreseeable future. 

3.6 The nomination does not provide any evidence that the community have access to 
the land in the ways described. 

Page 3

Item No.1



3.7 The relevant legislation stipulates that an asset can be listed as a community asset if 
its principle (non-ancillary) use furthers (or has recently furthered) the community’s 
social well-being or social interests and it is realistic to think that there can continue 
to be (or that there is a time in the next five years when there could be) non-ancillary 
use of the land which will further this social wellbeing/interest of the community. The 
application states that the current and principle use of the land is a private tenanted 
field used by a local farmer; the suggestion in the application is that this use could 
continue for the foreseeable future.  There is no evidence in the application that the 
principle use of the land is to further the community’s social wellbeing. 

3.8 In accordance with the legislation, it is not apparent, on the basis of the application, 
that the current or recent non-ancillary use of the asset furthers the social well-being 
and social interests of the community.  The principle use of the field, according to the 
nomination, is as private tenant farming and it is proposed in the application that this 
use continues.  The application does refer to the community deriving benefit from 
access and views but this would appear to be a secondary, ancillary benefit, which, 
in any event is not substantiated by evidence in the application.   It is therefore 
proposed that the nominated asset be added to the list of unsuccessful nominations.  

     

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Council notified the assets owner (I Love Staveley Ltd) of the nomination. The 
owner has registered their opposition to listing the land as an asset of community 
value. 

4.2 The assessment of the nomination was carried out by a Case Management Officer, 
in consultation with the Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio Holder, and the 
Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist. 

4.3 In line with the Cabinet decision on the 20th March 2019, delegated authority is given 
to the Director of Customer and Commercial Services, in consultation with the 
Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio Holder, to make the decision as to 
whether the nominated asset is added to the list. 

4.4 In accordance with Section 91 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council will send notice 
to all relevant parties of its decision in respect of the nomination. 

4.5 The District Councillors for the Kendal Rural ward have been informed of the 
nomination. Cllr Hazel Hodgson and Cllr Pat Bell have registered their support for the 
nomination. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 An alternative option would be to list the land as an asset of community value. 
However it is likely that it could be proven on appeal that the listing would not satisfy 
the requirements of the relevant legislation. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Empowering customers and communities to achieve the Council’s visions and 
values.   

6.2  Assets of Community Value relate to Council Plan key priority ‘Health and 
Environment’.  Specifically, improving quality of life by working with communities to 
reduce isolation and loneliness. 

Page 4



7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1.1 There are no financial or resources implications. 

Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no human resources implications. 

Legal 

7.3.1 Under Section 87 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council must maintain a list of assets 
of community value. 

7.3.2 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land is, or may be, 
an asset of community value if, in the opinion of the Authority:  

 The property is actually used, or was used in the recent past, for an activity 
that was not an ancillary use and which furthered the social wellbeing or 
interests of the local community; and 

o it is realistic to think that there can continue to be non-ancillary use of 
the property which will further (whether or not in the same way) the 
social wellbeing or social interests of the local community; or 

o it is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when 
there could be non-ancillary use of the property that would further 
(whether or not in the same way as before) the social wellbeing or 
social interests of the local community. 

 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out. A building or other land 
is an asset of community value if its main use has recently been or is presently used 
to further the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community and could do 
so in the future. The Localism Act 2011 states that social interests include cultural, 
recreational and sporting interests. 

7.4.2 The inclusion of assets on the List of Assets of Community Value is recorded as a 
local land charge under the Local Land Charges Act 1975. The Council is required 
under Schedule 4 of the Assets of Community Value (England) Regulation 2012 to 
apply to the Land Registry for a restriction to be added to the registered title of the 
land that “no transfer or lease is to be registered without a certificate signed by a 
conveyancer that the transfer or lease did not contravene Section 95(1) of the 
Localism Act 2011”. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

7.5.2 The Impact Assessment published by Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) indicates there are no foreseeable adverse impacts on any 
single equality group arising out of the legislation relating to Assets of Community 
Value. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council fails to meet the 
statutory deadlines for 

The Council faces 
challenge on the way in 
which it addresses 

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

Page 5



Risk Consequence Controls required 

responses and publication of 
lists 

nominations for Assets of 
Community Value 

The Council may be required to 
bear the burden of administering 
any initial appeals in respect of 
either nominations or 
compensation decisions 

The Council’s financial and 
other resources would be 
used to address any 
appeal 

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

Listed assets of community 
value not added to the local land 
charge register 

Reputational challenge Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

Contact Officers 

Tom Dugdale – Case Management Officer: 793269 t.dugdale@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Big Meadow_Staveley_ACV Nomination – Submitted by Staveley with 
Ings Parish Council 

2 Big Meadow_Staveley_ACV Nomination Map – Submitted by 
Staveley with Ings Parish Council 

3 Big Meadow_Staveley_ACV Assessment Form    

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Community Right to Bid: Non-

statutory advice for local authorities  

DCLG Website  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 11/10/2019 

Section 151 Officer 11/10/2019 

Monitoring Officer 11/10/2019 

CMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Specialist 11/10/2019 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 11/10/2019 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 6

mailto:t.dugdale@southlakeland.gov.uk
http://sharepoint/sites/policy/intelligence/Assets%20of%20Community%20Value%20%20Admin%20%20Guidance/Guidance,%20reports,%20notes%20and%20old%20things/Right%20to%20Bid%20-%20Non-Statutory%20Advice%20Note.pdf
http://sharepoint/sites/policy/intelligence/Assets%20of%20Community%20Value%20%20Admin%20%20Guidance/Guidance,%20reports,%20notes%20and%20old%20things/Right%20to%20Bid%20-%20Non-Statutory%20Advice%20Note.pdf


Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of the 
Corporate Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested parties 
before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must be reported 
at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

South Lakeland District Council - Asset of 
Community Value Nomination Form 

 
Before completing this form please read the material at www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 

Section A – Organisation 
 

Name of organisation 
 
 

Staveley with Ings Parish Council 

Address (including 
postcode) 
 
 
 
 

31 Wattsfield Road, 
Kendal 
LA9 5JN 

Contact (name) 

 
Mrs June Lee 

Position in organisation 

 
Clerk 

Address of contact 
(including postcode) 
 
 
 

 

As above 

Telephone no. 
 

01539 729382 

Email address 
 

staveleyings.parish@gmail.com 

 
 

Type of organisation 
 

Description Applying as: Registration no. of charity and/or 
company (if applicable) 

Neighbourhood forum (as defined 
by in Localism Act) 

  

Parish Council /  

Charity   

Page 9

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/
mailto:staveleyings.parish@gmail.com


APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

Community interest group   

Unincorporated body   

Company limited by guarantee   

Industrial and provident society   

 

A1. Local Connection 
 

A2. Number of members registered to vote locally (unincorporated bodies only) 
 
A3. Distribution of surplus funds (certain types of organisations – see below) 

 
A4. Your organisations rules: Please send us the relevant type of document for your 
organisation and indicate which it is: 
 

 Please tick: 

Memorandum and Articles of Association (for a company)  

Trust Deed (for a trust)  

Constitution and/or rules (for other organisations)  
 

 
 

Section B – Information on the nomination 
 

Your organisation must have a local connection, which means that its activities are wholly or partially 
concerned with the administrative area of South Lakeland District Council or neighbouring authority. 
 
Local Parish Council 

In the case of unincorporated bodies at least 21 of the members must be registered to vote locally. If they are 

registered to vote in a neighbouring local authority please indicate where. 

1800 

 

If your organisation is an unincorporated body, a company limited by guarantee, or an industrial and provident 

society, its rules must provide that any surplus funds are not distributed to members. Surplus funds must be 

applied in part or whole for the benefit of the local area. If relevant, please confirm that this is the case. 

 

 

N/A 

Page 10



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

What is being nominated 
 

A large meadow currently designated as Green Space 
by the LDNPA 

Name of the premises/land 
 

 
The Big Meadow, Staveley 

Address (including postcode) 
 
 
 
 

 
See enclosed map 

 
 
B1. The nomination form must include a map, which clearly states the boundaries of the 
premises or land that you are nominating. Please include with the nomination form. 
 
B2. Owners and other with interests in the building or land: 
 

 Name(s) Address(es) 

Current occupants 
 
 
 
 

 
Mr Black 
 
Tenant farmer 

 
Scroggs Farm, 
Staveley, 
LA8 9QZ 

Current or last 
known details of 
those owning the 
freehold of the 
land 
 
 
 

 

 
David Brockbank 

 
Estate Office 
Staveley Mill Yard, 
Back Lane, 
Staveley 
LA8 9LR 

Current or last 
known details of 
those having a 
leasehold interest 
in the land 
 
 
 

  

 
 
B3. Why do you think the building or land is of community value? 
 
This meadow is a huge area within the central part of the village and has been revered by 
residents for many years.  At the review of LDNPA Land Allocation last year, planning 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

application for housing and other developments was very strongly opposed by residents.  
The meadow is part of the infrastructure and landscape of our small village. 

Does this use further the social 
well-being and social interest of 
the community? 
 
Include information on: 

 the current level of use 
and who uses it 

 any used by particular 
communities of interest 
or need 

Yes it does.  It is ‘used’ by all residents and visitors to 
the village. 
 
The measurement of the well being of resident and 
visitors is difficult to quantify, but given the huge 
unctions to planning applications over the years 
demonstrates the importance of this land to residents 
as green space. 

What do communities gain from 
their use of the asset and what 
would be the impact if it were 
lost? 
 
 
 
 

 
Having the one green space located in the centre of the 
village is valued by all the village and visitors .  
Watching the seasonal farming changes taking place 
with it and enjoying the views across it, are valuable 
assets to he village. 

What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which 
the asset supports? 
 
Does the use of the asset do any 
of the following: 
 

 Reduce isolation 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage members 
of the community 

 Reach vulnerable people 

 Support community 
cohesion and 
involvement 

 Enable communities to 
be self supporting 

 Increase access to 
positive activities 

 
 
 
All residents and visitors are able to enjoy the green 
space on their movement around the village. 
 
walking around the big meadow is a common activity for 
most villagers.  The route is quite and wheelchair 
accessible, and not very steep and gives excellent 
views of the field and views around the village from the 
route. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
. 
 
 

Page 12



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

Does the community feel 
strongly that the asset should be 
retained as a community asset? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Yes it does, as evidenced by the huge objections to 
developments over the years proposed by landowners 
past and present. 

Could the asset realistically 
continue to be used for this or 
another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be 
achieved within the next five 
years)? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Yes it could. It would remain a tenanted field used by a 
local farmer for the foreseeable future. 

 

Section C – Submitting this nomination 
 
C1. Please include the following before submitting your application: 

 The rules of your organisation 

 A map of the nominated building or land 
 
 
C2. Signature: 

By signing your name (if submitting by post) or typing it (if submitting by email) you are confirming that the 
contents of this form are correct, to the best of your knowledge. 

 
C3. Where to send this form: 
 
By post to: Partnerships and Organisational Development Team, South Lakeland District 
Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, LA9 4DQ 
 

June M. Lee 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

By email to: policy@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

Page 14

mailto:policy@southlakeland.gov.uk


APPENDIX 2 
 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



APPENDIX 3 

Asset of Community Value Assessment – South Lakeland District Council 

 

Nominate By: Staveley with Ings Parish Council 

Number of Nominations: 1 

Date of Submission: 7th October 2019 

Address of Nomination: Big Meadow, Staveley 

Date of DED: 21th November 2019 

 

Section One - Eligible Criteria 

Eligible Criteria YES NO Further Comments 

Is the nominating body eligible to 
nominate? 

 

 The Parish Council is the nominating 
body. 

Does the nominating body have a 
connection to the nomination? 

 

 The plot of land is within the Parish 
of Staveley with Ings, situated in the 
village of Staveley. 

Is the nominated asset outside of one of 
the categories that cannot be assets of 
community value? 

 

 

 

 

Section Two – Determining Usage 

 YES NO Further Comments 

1.) Is there evidence of the use being 
described in the nomination? 

  The asset is a private tenanted 
farming field. The nomination states 
that the land is used for seasonal 
farming. There is no evidence to 
suggest that the community have 
access to the land. 

Is this the main, and non-ancillary, use 
of the land or premises? 

 

 The main non-ancillary use of the 
land would appear to be farming. If 
there is community access and 
enjoyment of views, this would 
appear to be a secondary and 
ancillary benefit of the present and 
recent use. 

Or has it been its use within the last 12 
months? 

  There is no evidence to suggest that 
the land has had another use in the 
past 12 months. 

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

2.) Does this use further the social well-
being and social interest of the 
community? 

  The primary use would appear to be 
tenant farming and there is no 
evidence to suggest this furthers the 
social wellbeing and interest of the 
community. 

Page 17



APPENDIX 3 

What is the current level of use of the 
asset and who uses it? 

  The application suggests that the 
current use of the land is seasonal 
farming by a tenanted farmer. There 
is no evidence regarding the 
intensity of the farming, or the 
frequency in which the community 
can access the land. 

Is it used by particular communities of 
interest or need? 

  There is reference to a wheelchair 
accessible path around the field, 
however there is no evidence as to 
whether the path is located within 
the field boundary or without it. 

What do communities gain from their 
use of the asset and what would be the 
impact if it were lost? 

  The nomination states that the 
community gain pleasure from 
walking around the asset, and 
enjoying the views across it. 
However there is no evidence 
provided to prove if this is gained 
within or without the field boundary 
or to indicate any other community 
use of the asset itself.  

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

3.) What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which the 
asset particularly supports? 

   

Does the main, non-ancillary use of the asset do the  
following: 
 

 Reduce isolation  

 

 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantaged members of the 
community 

 

  There is reference to a wheelchair 
accessible path around the field, 
however there is no evidence as to 
whether the path is located within 
the field boundary or without it. 

 Reach vulnerable people 
 

 

 

 

 Support community cohesion 
and involvement 

 

   

 Enable communities to be self 
supporting 

 

 

 

 Increase access to positive 
activities 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



APPENDIX 3 

4.) Does the community feel strongly that the 
asset should be retained as a community asset? 

 The Parish Council believes that the objections 
to development over the years are evidence 
that the community want the field to be 
retained as a community asset. However, there 
is an argument that the objections to 
development could be evidence that the locals 
do not want the land to be developed, rather 
than specific evidence that they want it to 
become a community asset. 

 

5.) Could the asset realistically continue to be 
used for this or another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be achieved within the 
next five years)? 

 There is no evidence to suggest that the asset 
currently is, or could continue to be, used for a 
qualifying community purpose. 

 

  

Page 19



APPENDIX 3 

Section Four - Non-ancillary use of the building or other land. 

Officers are asked to consider the following questions, where appropriate, in relation to non-

ancillary usage: 

 Yes No Comments 

Has the building/land legal requirement 
for this usage changed significantly that 
the asset is not fit for purpose? 

   

Could the asset be made fit for purpose 
practically and within reasonable 
resource requirements and within 
timescales? 

   

 

Recommendation and reasons for: 

 
Recommendation: Exclude the nomination from being listed on the asset register. 
 
Reasons: 
 
Legislation – According to the Localism Act, an asset can be listed as a community asset if its 
principle, non-ancillary, use furthers (or has recently furthered) the community’s social well-being 
or social interests and is likely to do so in the future.  The primary purpose of the asset appears to 
be farming and any social benefit derived appears to be ancillary. Therefore the requirements of 
the legislation would not, on the information at hand, appear to be met. 
 
Private Land – The asset is an area of private farming land. The nomination does not provide 
evidence that the asset is currently accessible to the community, or will be in the near future. 
 
Evidence – The main evidence provided in the nomination relates to the asset being designated as 
Green Space by the Lake District National Park Authority, comments about a feeling from the 
community against any development taking place on the land and the asset’s visual appeal to the 
community and visitors to the village. These factors do not appear to evidence a use which would 
satisfy the legislative requirements for listing the asset on the asset register. 
 

 

 

Page 20


	Agenda
	1 Asset of Community Value - Big Meadow, Staveley
	APPENDIX 1_Big Meadow_Staveley_ACV Nomination
	APPENDIX 2_Big Meadow_Staveley_ACV Nomination Map
	APPENDIX 3_Big Meadow_Staveley_ACV Assessment Form


